
Democratic Services Committee 
 

Meeting Venue 
 
 
Meeting date 
Thursday, 28 September 2023 
 
Meeting time 
11.00 am 
 
For further information please contact 

 

 
 

County Hall 
Llandrindod Wells 

Powys 
LD1 5LG 

Carol Johnson 
01597 826206 
carol.johnson@powys.gov.uk 

 20/09/2023 
 

 
Mae croeso i chi siarad yn Gymraeg neu yn Saesneg yn y cyfarfod.  
Rhowch wybod pa iaith rydych am ei defnyddio erbyn hanner dydd, ddau ddiwrnod 
gwaith cyn y cyfarfod.  
You are welcome to speak Welsh or English in the meeting.  
Please inform us of which language you wish to use by noon, two working days 
before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA 
  

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
To receive apologies for absence. 
 
  

2.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)  
 
To authorise the Chair to sign the minutes of the previous meeting of the Committee 
as a correct record. 
(Pages 3 - 4) 
  

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
To receive and consider declarations of interests from Members relating to items to 
be considered on the agenda. 
 
  

4.  POWYS PUBLIC SERVICE BOARD [PSB] SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
To consider a report regarding the Powys PSB Scrutiny Committee. 
(Pages 5 - 18) 
 
 
  

Public Document Pack



5.  MINOR AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION  
 
To note the report. 
(Pages 19 - 20) 
 
 
 



2023-07-06 DSC 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE HELD 
AT BY ZOOM ON THURSDAY, 6 JULY 2023 

 
PRESENT 
County Councillor E Vaughan (Chair) 
 
County Councillors G Breeze, D Bebb, K Healy, H Hulme, G E Jones, P Lewington 
and DW Meredith 
 

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Apologies for absence were received from County Councillors A Cartwright, and 
S L Williams and Councillor P E Lewis who was on other council business. 

 
2.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)  

 
The Chair was authorised to sign the minutes of the meeting held on 24 April 
2023 as a correct record. 

 
3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
  

4.  APPOINTMENT OF HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  
 

The Committee considered the report regarding the appointment of a new Head 
of Democratic Services.  In response to questions the Director of Corporate 
Services advised that there was capacity in the Team and the prospective post 
holder had not raised any issues.  She advised that if capacity issues were to 
arise these would be revisited.  The Head of Democratic Services would take on 
the day to day management but would liaise with the Head of Legal Services and 
Monitoring Officer in respect of policy.   Officers acknowledged the concerns 
were raised about the loss of a Welsh speaker in the Democratic Services and 
Scrutiny Team and the need for succession planning.  
 
It was moved and duly seconded that Catherine James, Head of Transformation 
and Democratic Services be designated as the Council’s statutory Head of 
Democratic Services with effect from 1st August 2023. 
 
RESOLVED Reason for decision 
That Catherine James, Head of 
Transformation and Democratic 
Services be designated as the 
Council’s statutory Head of 
Democratic Services with effect 
from 1st August 2023. 

To comply with the requirements 
of the Local Government (Wales) 
Measure 2011 (as amended) that 
the Council designates one of its 
officers as Head of Democratic 
Services. 

 
5.  WORK PROGRAMME  

 
The Committee noted the Work Programme.  It was noted that the New Ways of 
Working report had been referred back to the Committee for further consideration 
but in light of the discussions at the Council meeting the Director of Corporate 
Services wondered if this was needed.   The Committee considered that there 

Page 3

2



2023-07-06 DSC 

was a need to discuss issues further. It was noted that hybrid meetings reduce 
the need for travel and was good for the environment, but comment was made 
that new councillors had not experienced the same interaction with other 
councillors since the election in May 2022.  The Committee was advised that a 
survey regarding the timing of meetings and the format of meetings had been 
sent to councillors.  

 
 
 

County Councillor E Vaughan (Chair) 

Page 4



 
CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL. 

 
Democratic Services Committee 

28th September 2023 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: Catherine James, Head of Transformation and 
Democratic Services 

  
REPORT TITLE: Powys PSB Scrutiny Committee 
  
 

REPORT FOR: 
 

Decision  

 
1. Purpose  
 
1.1 The Committee is asked to recommend to the Council the appointment of three 

co-opted Members to the membership of the PSB Scrutiny Committee as well 
as to amend its terms of reference in relation to meetings. 

 
2. Background 
 
2.1 The Powys Public Service Board at its meeting on 6th July, 2023 considered a 

report regarding the PSB Scrutiny Committee (copy attached as Appendix 1). 
This arose following a review of the PSB’s own membership and took account 
of the view that as a partnership it would be beneficial if the scrutiny of the 
partnership was undertaken by a group which had a broader perspective than 
just the Council. 

 
2.2 The PSB noted from the report that the original membership of the PSB 

Scrutiny Committee was drawn from all of the partners involved in the PSB, 
and that this model had not been successful, which had led to the Council 
taking the decision in March, 2023 to review the membership. 

 
2.3 The PSB also accepted the following requirements should it request that the 

Council reviews the membership of the PSB Scrutiny Committee: 
 

• In accordance with the Terms of Reference for the PSB Scrutiny 
Committee, any co-opted Members:  
• cannot be drawn from the “executives” of any of the organisations to 

ensure that there is a split of responsibilities between those who are the 
“executive” of the organisation and those who undertake a “scrutiny” 
function.  

• should not include officers from those organisations. 
• should not be a Powys County Council representative on those 

organisations. 
 
2.4 Following discussion the PSB recommended to the Democratic Services 

Committee that the membership of the Committee be amended to 

Page 5

4



accommodate co-opted Members from other organisations and also complying 
with the following provisions: 

 
• A maximum of three co-opted Members (in accordance with the Statutory 

Guidance arising from the Local Government Measure 2011); 
• That those co-opted members can not: 

• be drawn from the executive of the organisation. 
• be officers from the organisation. 
• be Powys County Council representatives on those organisations 

 
2.5 In addition, the PSB recommended to the Democratic Services Committee that 

the Terms of Reference for the PSB Scrutiny Committee be amended to the 
effect that the requirement for meetings of the Committee would be set as a 
minimum of one and a maximum of two per year.  

 
3. Resource Implications 
 
3.1 Co-opted Members are not entitled to payments in accordance with the Annual 

Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales 2022 as they are not 
statutory appointments. However they would be entitled to claim travelling 
expenses for any face to face meetings 
 

3.2 Therefore the additional requirement on the revenue budget for 2023-24 would 
be minimal and can be accommodated within the existing budget. 

 
3.3 The Head of Finance (Section 151 Officer) notes the report and supports the 

recommendation. 
 
4. Legal implications 
 
4.1 Legal :  The recommendation can be supported from a legal point of view  
 
4.2 The Head of Legal Services and the Monitoring Officer’s has commented as 

follows: “ I note the legal comments and support the recommendation” 
 
5. Data Protection 
 
5.1 Not required. This does not involve the processing of personal data. 
 
6.  Comment from local member(s) 
 

Not applicable. 
 
7.   Impact Assessment 
 

Not required 
 
8. Recommendation 
 
Recommendation to the County Reason for Recommendation: 

Page 6



Council: 
(i) that the membership of the PSB 

Scrutiny Committee be amended 
to accommodate co-opted 
Members from other organisations 
and also complying with the 
following provisions: 

 
• A maximum of three co-opted 

Members (in accordance with 
the Statutory Guidance arising 
from the Local Government 
Measure 2011); 

• That those co-opted members 
can not: 
• be drawn from the executive 

of the organisation. 
• be officers from the 

organisation. 
• be Powys County Council 

representatives on those 
organisations 

 
(ii) that the Terms of Reference for the 

PSB Scrutiny Committee be 
amended to the effect that the 
requirement for meetings of the 
Committee would be set as a 
minimum of one and a maximum 
of two per year 

 
(iii) that if the Council approves 

recommendation (i) above that it 
appoints the three Co-opted 
Members to the PSB Scrutiny 
Committee. 

 
(iv) That the Head of Legal Service and 

the Monitoring Officer is 
authorised to amend Section 7 of 
the Constitution and to make such 
other consequential amendments 
as may be required. 

To review the membership of the PSB 
Scrutiny Committee. 

 
 
Contact Officer: Catherine James, Head of Transformation and Democratic 

Services 
Tel:   01597 826768 
Email:   catherine.james@powys.gov.uk 
 

Page 7



Corporate Director:  Emma Palmer, Director of Corporate Services. 
 

Page 8



Appendix 1 
CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL. 

 
Powys Public Service Board 

6th July 2023 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: County Councillor James Gibson-Watt 
Leader and Cabinet Member for an Open and 
Transparent Powys 

  
REPORT TITLE: Powys PSB Scrutiny Committee   
  
 

REPORT FOR: 
 

Decision / Discussion / Information 

 
1. Purpose  
 
1.1 The report sets out the legislative background to the establishment of 

the Powys PSB Scrutiny Committee which came into being in 2018, 
how the membership was originally determined and why this was 
amended in 2023. 

 
2. Legislative Background 
 
2.1 PSBs in Wales were established as a consequence of the Well-being 

of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The Statutory Guidance in 
relation to Public Service Boards (Shared Purpose: Shared Future – 
SPSF3) is limited in its commentary regarding the requirements for 
scrutiny. The main provisions are set out in Chapter 6 – Local 
Accountability as set out below: 

 
“Chapter 6 - Local accountability   
173. Local integrated planning will only be effective if statutory members of 

the public services board take joint-responsibility themselves for 
securing improvement, with local democratic processes providing 
appropriate challenge and support.  For this reason, the Act gives the 
Welsh Ministers relatively few powers and relies predominantly on the 
role of local government scrutiny to secure continuous improvement.   

174. In order to assure democratic accountability there is a requirement for 
a designated local government scrutiny committee of the relevant local 
authority to scrutinise the work of the public services board. It will be 
for each local authority to determine its own scrutiny arrangements for 
the public services board of which it is a member. For example, 
existing legislative powers can be used to put in place joint 
arrangements, such as ‘co-opting’ persons who are not members of 
the authority to sit on the committee, and where appropriate to appoint 
joint committees across more than one local authority area.   

175. While it will continue to be entirely legitimate for a subject scrutiny 
committee (such as a children and young people’s scrutiny committee) 
to scrutinise the public services board’s work in relation to a specific 
issue, it is important that one committee takes an overview of the 

Page 9



overall effectiveness of the board.  This is the reason one committee 
must be designated to undertake this work. 

 
The functions of the Scrutiny Committee are as follows: 
 
a) review or scrutinise the decisions made or actions taken by the 

public services board;  
b) review or scrutinise the board's governance arrangements;  
c) make reports or recommendations to the board regarding its 

functions or governance arrangements;  
d) consider matters relating to the board as the Welsh Ministers 

may refer to it and report to the Welsh Ministers accordingly; 
and  

e) carry out other functions in relation to the board that are 
imposed on it by the Act. 

 
178. The designated committee will be provided with evidence in the form 

of the draft assessment of local well-being and, the draft local well-
being plan (both of which they will be formally consulted on) and 
copies of the final versions of both. It will also be provided with annual 
reports.   

179. In addition, the committee will be able to draw on the published advice 
provided to the public services board by the Future Generations 
Commissioner for Wales.    

180. The committee can require any statutory member of the board to give 
evidence, but only in respect of the exercise of joint functions 
conferred on them as a statutory member of the board under this Act. 
This includes any person that has accepted an invitation to participate 
in the activity of the board.  

181. The committee must send a copy of any report or recommendation it 
makes to the Welsh Ministers, the Commissioner and the Auditor 
General for Wales.    

182. The public services board must send copies of its published 
assessments of local well-being, local well-being plans (including 
when it is revised) and each of its annual reports to the Welsh 
Ministers, Future Generations Commissioner for Wales and Auditor 
General for Wales in addition to the designated local authority scrutiny 
committee. 

 
3. The Powys PSB Scrutiny Committee. 
 
3.1 The Powys PSB Scrutiny Committee came into existence in 2018. 

When the Terms of reference for the PSB Scrutiny Committee were 
being prepared the Scrutiny Manager drew upon knowledge of how 
one other authority in Wales (Cardiff Council) had established its PSB 
Scrutiny Committee which was a committee which included 
representatives from each of the partner agencies (not drawn from the 
executives but from those exercising a scrutiny function). It was 
therefore suggested that the Committee should be composed as 
follows: 

 
• 2 Elected Members of Powys County Council;  
• 2 independent Members of, of Powys Teaching Local Health Board;  

Page 10



• 1 non executive and non-County Councillor representative from the 
Mid and West Wales Fire and Rescue Authority;  

• 1 non-executive representative from the Natural Resources Wales 
Board.  

• 1 non-executive representative from PAVO and is not a 
representative on the LSB;  

• 1 representative of the Police and Crime Commissioner / Dyfed 
Powys Police;  

• 1 non-County Councillor representative from Wales Community 
Rehabilitation Company;  

• 1 non Powys County Council Member of the Brecon Beacons 
National Park Authority.  

 
Substitutes: Nominated substitutes will be allowed for the 
representatives listed above provided that the substitutes are not 
involved in and have not attended meetings of the PSB. 

 
3.2 From the outset, Natural Resources Wales indicated that they wished 

to act as observers only as they did not have the resource to commit to 
all the PSB Scrutiny Committees in Wales. In addition, the Police and 
Crime Commissioner / Dyfed Powys Police and the Wales Community 
Rehabilitation Company were not forthcoming with any representatives 
despite repeated requests. 

 
3.3 The Terms of Reference stated that as a minimum the Committee’s 

work programme should include: 
 

• To scrutinise the evidence base that underpins the Well-being 
assessment for Powys:  

• To scrutinise the arrangements for the preparation of the Powys 
Well-being Plan; 

• To pre-scrutinise the draft Powys Well-being Plan;  
• To pre-scrutinise the Annual Report of the PSB; 
• To scrutinise the arrangements for the review and amendment of 

the Powys Well-being Plan  
 
The work of the Scrutiny Committee should be: 
 

• To provide a ‘critical friend’ challenge to the Public Service Board; 
• To scrutinise, evaluate and actively promote improvement in work 

carried out in line with Public Service Board priorities and its terms of 
reference and not that of those individual constituent organisations 
represented on the Public Service Board; 

• To develop and deliver a forward work programme which seeks to 
contribute to the performance management and governance 
arrangements of the Public Service Board, and its projects; 

• To commission Research & Evaluation Group investigations into 
areas identified on its forward work programme.  

Page 11



• To submit reports to the Public Service Board (as appropriate) and 
make recommendations for consideration and adoption; 

 
The quorum of the Committee was set as follows: 
 

• 1 representative from Powys County Council;  
• 1 representative from Powys Teaching Health Board;  
• 2 representatives from any of the following organisations: 

• Natural Resources Wales 
• Mid and West Wales Fire and Rescue Service 
• Powys Association of Voluntary Organisations; 
• Dyfed Powys Police / Dyfed Powys Police and Crime 

Commissioner; 
• Wales Community Rehabilitation Company; 
• Brecon Beacons National Park Authority; 

is present at a meeting. 
 
3.4 The attendance of the varying membership of the Committee at 9 

meetings between 2018 to 2021 is set out in the attached spreadsheet. 
This also shows the numbers of meetings cancelled over the period. 

 
3.5 Over the period 2018 to 2021 the PSB Scrutiny Committee issued the 

following reports: 
• 5 x Recommendations / Observations reports to the PSB (2018(1) / 

2019(1) / 2020 (1)/ 2021(2)  
• 2 x Observations reports to Step Leads (Steps 6 and 10) (2019) 
• 1 x comment on the PSB Annual Report (2019) 

 
3.6 No meetings of the PSB Scrutiny Committee were held during 2022 

leading up to and following the election of Councillors in May 2022 as 
very soon after the Council set its budget in 2022 the pre-election 
period commenced. Following the election there was an extensive 
period of training new Councillors and with a new administration there 
was a period of time required for the formulation of new corporate 
objectives following the compilation of a new Well-Being Assessment 
which would also impact on the Powys Well-Being Plan (Towards 
2040). 

 
4. Council Decision – March 2023. 
 
4.1 The Council was asked to review its Scrutiny Committee structure in 

March 2023 which included a review of the PSB Scrutiny Committee. 
There were a number of reasons why it was considered that a review 
of this committee was required, including: 

 
• Inconsistent / variable attendance at meetings; 
• Turnover of Member representation; 

Page 12



• Lack of any tangible outcomes from the meetings resulting in few 
recommendations to the PSB over the 4 year period (see paragraph 
3.5 above); 

 
4.2 In addition, prior to the report being prepared a review of PSB Scrutiny 

Committees in all other Councils in Wales was undertaken. This 
showed that in all other cases (including Cardiff Council) other than 
Powys scrutiny was undertaken by Councillors only. The only slightly 
similar structure to Powys was Bridgend who had a panel which 
reported to the PSB Scrutiny Committee comprising of Councillors. 

 
4.3 The Council emailed all remaining representatives on the PSB Scrutiny 

Committee in early 2023 advising of the proposed changes and asking 
for comments. None were received. 

 
4.4 Following consideration by the Democratic Services Committee in 

February 2023, the recommendation to the Council on 2nd March, 2023 
was therefore to reconstitute the PSB Scrutiny Committee to comprise: 

 
9 Members in total including: 
• Vice-Chairs of the 2 Scrutiny Committees, plus 
• 2 additional representatives from each of the scrutiny committees 

(on a politically balanced basis based on a committee of 6) 
 
4.5 The Council approved this change on 2nd March, 2023.  
 
5. Advice 
 
5.1 From the experience of operating the multi-representational Powys 

PSB Scrutiny Committee, it was clear that this body was not operating 
effectively and that changes were necessary. As the revised committee 
has not yet commenced its work, it should be given the opportunity to 
settle into its role following which a further review can be undertaken. 

 
5.2 Should the PSB wish to recommend to Council that the previous 

decision be amended to include other representatives onto the 
committee, the following needs to be taken into account: 

 
• In order for the decision of Council to be re-considered for 

amendment or to be rescinded within 6 months of the decision will 
require a notice of motion to Council signed by at least 10 Members 
(Rule 4.60.1 of the Constitution). If the proposed amendment is 
considered following the 6 month period the need for a motion 
signed by 10 members is removed. 

• Welsh Government Statutory Guidance arising from the Local 
Government Measure 2011 (issued June 2012) states: 
 
“8.19 In recognition of the democratic mandate of elected councillors it is 
recommended that the number of co-opted members on a scrutiny 

Page 13



committee should not exceed a third of the total membership of the 
committee” 
 

• In addition, Rules 7.12.4 and 7.12.5 of the Council’s constitution 
states: 
 
“7.12.4 In addition to co-optees appointed under rules 7.12.1.1 to 7.12.1.3 

above, Scrutiny Committees may recommend to Full Council the co-
option of other persons as voting or non-voting representatives. In 
exercising or deciding whether to exercise a co-option, the Authority 
must, under section 76 of The Measure, have regard to guidance given 
by the Welsh Ministers and comply with directions given by them 

7.12.5 The total number of co-optees on each Scrutiny Committee may not 
exceed more than one third the membership of the committee” (Paragraph 
8.19 Statutory Guidance from the Local Government Measure 2011 (issued by Welsh 
Government June 2012) 

 
• In accordance with the Terms of Reference for the PSB Scrutiny 

Committee, any co-opted Members:  
• cannot be drawn from the “executives” of any of the organisations to 

ensure that there is a split of responsibilities between those who are 
the “executive” of the organisation and those who undertake a 
“scrutiny” function.  

• should not include officers from those organisations. 
• should not be a Powys County Council representative on those 

organisations. 
 
6. Recommendation 
 
6.1 That the report be noted and if the Public Service Board wishes to 

make a recommendation to the Council at its meeting in October 2023 
(following the end of the 6 month period from the original decision 
being taken) to amend the membership of the Public Service Board 
Scrutiny Committee to accommodate co-opted Members from other 
organisations the request will need to comply with the provisions set 
out in paragraph 5.2 above which are: 

 
• A maximum of three co-opted Members; 
• That those co-opted members can not: 

• be drawn from the executive of the organisation. 
• be officers from the organisation. 
• be Powys County Council representatives on those 

organisations 
 
Contact Officer: Wyn Richards, Scrutiny Manager and Head of Democratic 

Services 
Tel:   01597 826375 
Email:   wyn.richards@powys.gov.uk 
 
Head of Service: Catherine James,Head of Transformation and Democratic 

Services. 
 

Page 14



Corporate Director:   Emma Palmer, Director of Corporate Services. 
 
 
 
 
CABINET REPORT NEW TEMPLATE VERSION 3 

Page 15



Appendix 1 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Jones, David
Angela Davies

Wilkinson, Jonathan
Charlton, Jackie

Selby, David
Williams, Ange
Rijnenberg, Liz

John Brautigam
Jones, Gareth D

Roberts, Pete
Williams, Gwilym

Ian Phillips
Owen James

Sara Williams
Tony Thomas
Trish Buchan

Councillor Steve Evans
Councillor Ann Webb

Ian Rowat
Cllr Mathew Feakins

Liz Davies
Cllr John Hill
Gavin Bown

Neil Evans
Ruth Parry-Wright

Peter Swanson

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Attendances (out of 9 meetings) between 2018 and 2021

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Meetings Held: Meetings cancelled:

Meetings held 2018 - 2021

Page 16



 
 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

PCC  (Quorum 1) PTHB (Quorum 1) Other (Quorum 2) Total Attendees (out of 8)

20/09/18 29/04/19 18/07/19 03/10/19 14/01/20

15/10/20 04/05/21 07/07/21 01/11/21

Representational Attendance 2018 - 2021

Page 17



 

PSB Scrutiny Committee 20-09-2018 to 01-11-2021

Individual Attendances

Member Attendances Representing From To
Jones, David 2 PCC 2021 2022
Angela Davies 6 PCC 2019 2021
Wilkinson, Jonathan 1 PCC - Reserve 2021 C
Charlton, Jackie 2 PCC 2018 2019
Selby, David 1 PCC - Reserve 2021 2021
Williams, Ange 3 PCC 2019 2020
Rijnenberg, Liz 2 PCC 2021 C
John Brautigam 0 PCC - Reserve 2019 C
Jones, Gareth D 0 PCC 2019 2020
Roberts, Pete 0 PCC - Reserve 2018 2019
Williams, Gwilym 0 PCC - Reserve 2018 2019
Ian Phillips 3 PTHB - Reserve 2020 C
Owen James 4 PTHB 2018 2020
Sara Williams 0 PTHB 2018 2018
Tony Thomas 2 PTHB 2018 2020
Trish Buchan 7 PTHB 2018 2022
Councillor Steve Evans 2 BBNPA - Reserve 2020 C
Councillor Ann Webb 5 BBNPA 2018 2021
Ian Rowat 1 BBNPA 2018 2020
Cllr Mathew Feakins 0 BBNPA 2018 2020
Liz Davies 1 BBNPA 2021 C
Cllr John Hill 0 BBNPA - Reserve 2020 C
Gavin Bown 2 NRW 2021 C
Neil Evans 8 MAWWFRA 2018 C
Ruth Parry-Wright 2 PAVO 2018 2020
Peter Swanson 3 PAVO 2019 C

Year: Meetings Held: Meetings cancelled:
2018 2 0
2019 3 1
2020 1 2
2021 3 1
2022 0 3

Representational Attendance:

Quorum for Meetings:
1 x PCC Representative
1 x PTHB Representative
2 x Other Body Representatives

Meetings: PCC  (Quorum 1) PTHB (Quorum 1) Other (Quorum 
2)

Total Attendees 
(out of 8)

20/09/18 1 2 1 4
29/04/19 2 2 1 5
18/07/19 2 1 4 7
03/10/19 2 2 3 7
14/01/20 1 1 2 4
15/10/20 2 2 2 6
04/05/21 2 1 3 6
07/07/21 2 2 4 8
01/11/21 1 2 2 5

Public Service Board Scrutiny Committee, 9 meetings

Page 18



 
CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL. 

 
Democratic Services Committee 

28 September 2023 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: Clive Pinney, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring 
Officer 

  
REPORT TITLE: Minor Amendments to the Constitution 
  
 

REPORT FOR: 
 

Information  

 
1. Purpose  
 
1.1 To advise the Democratic Services Committee of minor amendments to the 

Constitution undertaken by the Monitoring Officer under delegated authority as 
set out in Rules 2.7 and 2.8 of the Constitution. 

 
2. Minor Amendments made. 
 
Section 9 – Regulatory Committees – Governance and Audit Committee. 
 
Rule Amendment Reason 
9.3.1 Addition of footnote in relation to the 

Licensing Act 2003 Committee. 
Reminder of the legislative 
requirement that the committee 
must consist of at least ten but 
no more than fifteen members. 

9.3.4.2 Amend reference to Rule 11.45 to read 
11.46 

Correction of reference 

9.4.4.3 Deletion of the following in relation to 
the Chair of the Governance and Audit 
Committee : 
• Cannot be a member of the Cabinet 
• Can only be a member of an executive 

group if there are no opposition groups 

The Chair of the Governance 
and Audit Committee must be 
an Independent / Lay Member 
(Local Government and 
Elections (Wales) Act 2021) and 
therefore these bullet point no 
longer apply. 

9.4.5 Deletion of the words “or a Co-opted 
Member” in relation to the appointment 
of the Vice-Chair of the Governance and 
Audit Committee. 

There are no co-opted Members 
on the Governance and Audit 
Committee so this does not 
apply. 

9.4.6 Insertion of this new rule: 
“The Member appointed as the Vice-Chair 
must not be a member of the local 
authority’s executive or an assistant to its 
executive” 

Amendment arising from the 
Local Government and Elections 
(Wales) Act 2021. 

9.4.6 Renumbering of the original Rule 9.4.6 
to 9.4.7 as a result of the insertion 
above. 

Renumbering 

Page 19

5



9.4.7 Deletion of the original rule 9.4.7 (would 
have been renumbered 9.4.8: 
“A person presiding at a Governance and 
Audit Committee can only be a member of 
an executive group if there are no 
opposition groups” 

The person presiding at a 
Governance and Audit 
Committee must be an 
Independent / Lay Member in 
accordance with the Local 
Government and Elections 
(Wales) Act 2021 

 
Section 11 – Officers. 
 
Rule Amendment Reason 
11.35 Amending the title of the “Head of 

Transformation and Communications” to 
“Head of Transformation and 
Democratic Services” 

Change of title. 

11.35 Deletion of “Scrutiny, Democratic 
Services and Member Support” as a 
function under the Head of Legal 
Services and Monitoring Officer. 

Moved to different service area 

11.35 Insertion of “Scrutiny, Democratic 
Services and Member Support” as a 
function under the Head of 
Transformation and Democratic 
Services 

Move to different service area 

11.49 Amend reference to Rule 11.49.2 to 
read 11.48.2 

Correction of reference 

11.50 Amend reference to Rule 11.49.2 to 
read 11.48.2 

Correction of reference 

 
3. Recommendation 
 
Recommendation to the Democratic 
Services Committee: 

Reason for Recommendation: 

To note the minor amendments made 
to the Constitution by the Head of 
Legal Services and Monitoring 
Officer. 
 

To monitor, review and make minor 
amendments to the Constitution in 
accordance with Rules 2.4, 2.7 and 
2,8 of the Constitution. 

 
 
Contact Officer: Clive Pinney, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
Tel:   01597 826746 
Email:   clive.pinney@powys.gov.uk 
 
Corporate Director:  Jack Straw, Interim Chief Executive 

 

Page 20


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)
	4 Powys Public Service Board [PSB] Scrutiny Committee
	CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL.
	Democratic Services Committee
	1.	Purpose
	2.	Background
		In accordance with the Terms of Reference for the PSB Scrutiny Committee, any co-opted Members:
		cannot be drawn from the “executives” of any of the organisations to ensure that there is a split of responsibilities between those who are the “executive” of the organisation and those who undertake a “scrutiny” function.
		should not include officers from those organisations.
		should not be a Powys County Council representative on those organisations.
	Appendix 1 - 2023-07-06 Report to the PSB - PSB Scrutiny Committee
	CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL.
	Powys Public Service Board
	1.	Purpose
	2.	Legislative Background
	5.1	From the experience of operating the multi-representational Powys PSB Scrutiny Committee, it was clear that this body was not operating effectively and that changes were necessary. As the revised committee has not yet commenced its work, it should be given the opportunity to settle into its role following which a further review can be undertaken.
	5.2	Should the PSB wish to recommend to Council that the previous decision be amended to include other representatives onto the committee, the following needs to be taken into account:
		In order for the decision of Council to be re-considered for amendment or to be rescinded within 6 months of the decision will require a notice of motion to Council signed by at least 10 Members (Rule 4.60.1 of the Constitution). If the proposed amendment is considered following the 6 month period the need for a motion signed by 10 members is removed.
		Welsh Government Statutory Guidance arising from the Local Government Measure 2011 (issued June 2012) states:
	“8.19 In recognition of the democratic mandate of elected councillors it is recommended that the number of co-opted members on a scrutiny committee should not exceed a third of the total membership of the committee”
		In addition, Rules 7.12.4 and 7.12.5 of the Council’s constitution states:
		In accordance with the Terms of Reference for the PSB Scrutiny Committee, any co-opted Members:
		cannot be drawn from the “executives” of any of the organisations to ensure that there is a split of responsibilities between those who are the “executive” of the organisation and those who undertake a “scrutiny” function.
		should not include officers from those organisations.
		should not be a Powys County Council representative on those organisations.
	CABINET REPORT NEW TEMPLATE VERSION 3
	Appendix 1


	5 Minor Amendments to the Constitution
	CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL.
	Democratic Services Committee
	1.	Purpose
	2.	Minor Amendments made.


